ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 26, 2002
3:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Sharon Ci ssna
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 464

"An Act relating to statewi de school district correspondence
study prograns.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 407
"An Act relating to the certificate of need program"”

- HEARD AND HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

University of Al aska Board of Regents

Mar k Begi ch - Anchorage
Mar | ene Johnson - Juneau
Joseph Hardenbr ook - Fairbanks

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
HOUSE BI LL NO. 408

"An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys admnistered in
the public schools.™

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2002



- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 338

"An Act meking a special appropriation for a grant to Boys and
Grls dubs of Southcentral Alaska for a youth suicide
prevention program and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 464

SHORT TI TLE: CORRESPONDENCE STUDY PROGRAMS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) JAMVES

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 19/ 02 2313 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 02 2313 (H) EDU, HES

02/ 22/ 02 2370 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

02/ 27/ 02 2416 (H REFERRALS CHANGED TO HES, EDU

03/ 07/ 02 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 07/ 02 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 07/ 02 (H) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 13/ 02 2530 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : COGHI LL,
KOHRI NG, GREEN,

03/ 13/ 02 2530 (H) FOSTER

03/ 14/ 02 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 14/ 02 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 02 (H) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 19/ 02 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 02 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 21/ 02 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 21/ 02 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 22/ 02 2655 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : FATE

03/ 26/ 02 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 407

SHORT TI TLE: CERTI FI CATE OF NEED PROGRAM
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 13/ 02 2232 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 13/ 02 2232 (H) CRA, HES

03/ 04/ 02 2469 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  JAMES

03/ 13/ 02 2530 (H COSPONSOR( S):  SCALZI

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2002



03/ 14/ 02 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 14/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 18/ 02 2593 (H COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

03/ 19/ 02 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 19/ 02 (H Heard & Held

03/ 19/ 02 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 21/ 02 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 21/ 02 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 21/ 02 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 22/ 02 2638 (H) CRA RPT 2DP 2NR 3AM

03/ 22/ 02 2638 (H DP: SCALZI, MEYER, NR GUESS,
HAL CRO,

03/ 22/ 02 2638 (H AM KERTTULA, MJRKOWSKI ,
MORGAN

03/ 22/ 02 2638 (H FN1: (HSS)

03/ 26/ 02 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 408
SHORT TI TLE: STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS
SPONSOR( S):  EDUCATI ON

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 13/ 02 2233 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 13/ 02 2233 (H EDU, HES

02/ 20/ 02 (H) EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 20/ 02 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 20/ 02 (H M NUTE( EDU)

02/ 20/ 02 2338 (H EDU RPT 6DP

02/ 20/ 02 2338 (H DP: PORTER, W LSON, GUESS,
STEVENS,

02/ 20/ 02 2338 (H) GREEN, BUNDE

02/ 20/ 02 2338 (H FN1: ZERQ( EED)

03/ 26/ 02 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 338

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: GRANTS TO PREVENT YOUTH SUl Cl DE
SPONSCR(S): COMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H HES, FIN

01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H REFERRED TO HES

01/ 24/ 02 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 24/ 02 (H Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 02 (H M NUTE( HES)

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2002



03/ 26/ 02 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JEANNETTE JAMES

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 214

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 464.

VH TNEY HI GHLAND, St af f

to Senator Loren Lenman

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 516

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 464, presented changes
in the Senate conpanion bill [SB 346] included in Version P of
HB 464.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St aff

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned HB 407, Version F.

ELMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Department of Health and Social Services

P. O Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the departnent's perspective on
HB 407; suggested changes.

JEROVE SELBY, Regional D rector

Pl anni ng, Devel opnent, and Advocacy

Provi dence Health Systemin Al aska

P. 0. Box 1962

Kodi ak, Al aska 99615-1962

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 407.

MARK BEQ CH, Appoi nt ee

to the University of Al aska Board of Regents

P. 0. Box 201627

Anchor age, Al aska 99520

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2002



MARLENE JOHNSQON, Appoi nt ee

to the University of Al aska Board of Regents

c/o Comrercial Fisheries Entry Conmmi ssion

8800 d aci er H ghway, Suite 109

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

JOSEPH HARDENBROCK, Appoi nt ee

to the University of Al aska Board of Regents

P. O Box 750362

Fai r banks, Al aska 99775-0362

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents.

REPRESENTATI VE CON BUNDE

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 501

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 408 as chair of the House
Speci al Comm ttee on Education, sponsor.

LI SA TORKELSON

(Address not provided)

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 408,
expressing concern that it doesn't include parents.

CAROL COVEAU, Superi ntendent

Anchorage School District

P. O Box 196614

Anchor age, Al aska 99519-6614

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 408 [Version (]
of f ered suggesti ons.

TERRY SCOLOVON

520 5t h Avenue

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 408 [Version (.

RI CHARD BLOCK

Christian Science Commttee on Publication

for the State of Al aska

360 West Benson Boul evard, Suite 301

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 408, cautioned about
changi ng the wel | -bal anced approach of 1999.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2002



JAKE METCALFE, Menber

Anchor age School Board

Anchorage School District

P. 0. Box 196614

Anchor age, Al aska 99519-6614

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Announced that the Anchorage School Board
supports HB 408, Version C.

RUTHAMAE KARR

I nterior Neighborhood Heal th Corporation

1949 G |lamWay, Suite D

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 408, both on her
own behal f and on behal f of her children, who are parents.

DEE HUBBARD

P. O, Box 88

Sterling, Alaska 99672

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 408.

ANDREE McLEOD

3721 Young Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 408; said
parents don't want these questions asked, and conveyed support
for the current |aw.

EM LY NENON, Al aska Advocacy Manager

Anmerican Cancer Society

1057 West Fireweed Lane, Nunber 204

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 408 on behalf of
the Anerican Cancer Society and Al askans for Tobacco-Free Kids,
calling Version C the best kind of public policy.

RI C | ANNOLI NO, Chair

Youth on the Street

P. O, Box 21892

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 408; asked that the
| egislature allow for local control on an individualized basis
for school surveys.

JOHN QATES, Chief Executive Oficer

Boys & Grls Cubs of Southcentral Al aska
2300 West 36t h Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99517

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2002



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented provisions of HB 338 to the
conmittee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-24, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:03 p.m
Present at the <call to order were Representatives Dyson,
Coghill, Stevens, and G ssna. Representati ves W1 son, Kohring,
and Joule joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 464- SCHOOL DI STRI CT CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

CHAI R DYSON announced the first order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 464, "An Act relating to statewide school district
correspondence study prograns.” [Before the committee was
Version O, as anmended on March 14.] He sought confirmation from
Representative Jeannette Janmes that her intention was for the
commttee to adopt Version P [as a work draft].

Number 0260

REPRESENTATI VE  JEANNETTE  JAMES, Al aska State Legislature,
sponsor of HB 464, offered her intention that the conmttee
adopt the anendnents made by the Senate [to the conpanion bill
SB 346; those changes are enbodied in Version P]. She expressed
her preference that the commttee hold the bill pending the
forthcomng [Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED)] regul ations.

Nunmber 0325

VH TNEY HI GHLAND, Staff to Senator Loren Leman, Al aska State
Legi slature, cane forward at the invitation of Chair Dyson to
present the changes in Version P [on behalf of the Senate
Health, Education and Soci al Services Standing Committee,
sponsor of SB 346, the conpanion bill; Senator Leman is vice
chair of that commttee].

M5. HI GHLAND brought attention to title changes. First, "hone
school ing” has been omtted. Home school progranms are currently
classified by [EED] as correspondence study prograns, she
explained; to avoid confusion, "the sponsor" chose to use
| anguage parallel to the departnent's - "hone schooling"” is not

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2002



recognized in statute. The new title also includes "centralized
correspondence study"; that allows the inclusion of Alyeska
Central School, which is not run by school district, but by EED
St atewi de school district correspondence study progranms are run
by school districts, she noted.

M5. HI GHLAND turned attention to page 1, lines 4-5, and noted
t he om ssion of "school district". This allows for inclusion of
the Alyeska Central School (ACS). She pointed out that page 1,
lines 7-8, i ncludes all entities that conduct st at ewi de

correspondence study prograns: ACS, charter schools, and school
districts.

Number 0480

M5. H GHLAND pointed out that page 2, line 2, replaces "school
district” with "governing body". This change was recomrended by
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services to align with statutory
| anguage, since "governing body" is defined in statute as being
the school board of a borough school district, a city school
district, or a regional education attendance area [school
district]. On page 2, lines 3-8, ["establish procedures”] is
added to better align with the statutory authority of school
boards found in AS 14.14. 090.

M5. H GHLAND expl ai ned that Version P also specifies that school
districts have the ability to establish these procedures only in
regard to curriculum materials purchased by school districts or
governi ng boards, and not those purchased [with private funds].
Version P also provides that a procedure be in place for schoo
boards to approve or disapprove hone-designed courses and [to
establish procedures] for the evaluation of student work. She
concluded that these changes ultimately give the authority to
establish procedures to local school boards, not to the
departnent. She added that on page 2, line 9, "district" is
defi ned. In statute, "district” means a city or borough schoo
district or regional educational attendance area.

Number 0610

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noved to adopt Version P, 22-1LS1494\P,
Ford, 3/18/02, as a work draft. There being no objection,
Version P was before the committee.

CHAI R DYSON announced the intention of addressing the fiscal

note and holding the bill pending the actions [of EED and
review of the EED regulations. He stated that |[Version P]

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2002



brings the bill into conformty wth the Senate version [SB
346]. |[He asked if soneone from EED was present to speak to the
changes, but was infornmed that no one was.]

Number 0710

CHAIR DYSON related his belief that because the bill has been
significantly altered, the commttee is justified in zeroing out
the fiscal note. He offered assurance that plenty of tinme would
be granted for the departnent to draft a new fiscal note, should
the conmttee revisit HB 464.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to zero out the fiscal note for HB
464.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE objected for purposes of discussion. He
asked about the difference between the zero fiscal note and the
fiscal note prepared by EED.

CHAI R DYSON of fered his understanding that when the [EED] fi scal
note was prepared, the bill made it the responsibility of the
departnment to conduct all the review required therein; this was
before the bill was nodified to give review responsibilities to
the [programis governing body]. He suggested that is a fair
justification for nodifying the fiscal note, but asked M.
Hi ghl and whether his statenment was correct; he then observed
that Ms. Highland had gestured her concurrence. Chair Dyson
asked Representative Joule if he maintained his objection.

Number 0820

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE replied no, but requested to see the
[earlier EED] fiscal note.

CHAI R DYSON suggested that Representative Joule wait to see [a
forthcom ng fiscal note from EED for Version P], and whether the
commttee chose to take action on the bill

CHAI R DYSON announced that there being no objection, the fisca
note was zeroed out. He al so announced that HB 464 would be
hel d pending review of the EED regul ati ons, which EED personnel
had i ndi cated woul d be available online April 8.

Nunmber 0896

REPRESENTATI VE  JOULE suggested that since the cost of
[oversight] is being shifted to the school districts, he would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 26, 2002



like to hear from Carl Rose [of the Association of Al aska School
Boards (AASB)] when the conmittee revisits HB 464.

CHAI R DYSON conveyed wuncertainty that AASB was the correct
entity to respond to this, but suggested that the conmttee
woul d hear fromthe districts. He continued:

To the departnment | want to say that, in colloquial
terms, what | wunderstand this bill was about: it
reflects the legislature's significant concern about
what was happening, apparently, with the regulations

in the first draft. And Representative Janmes - in ny
words, not hers - has |oaded a cannon and ... fired it
across the bow of the departnent, saying, "Go slow
here; we are very concerned about what ... the
| egi sl ature, by and |arge, considers to be an
overregul ation of correspondence schools.™ The

departnent has responded to those concerns.

CHAIR DYSON nentioned review that happened in the [Joint
Commttee on Adm nistrative Regulation Review], in the current
commttee, and before the Senate. He offered his understanding
that essentially all the parties who would be affected by the
regul ati ons are now confortable with the departnent's conm tnent
to revise the regul ations. He added, "The proverbial cannon is
still |oaded and ained."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES added, "W have the safety on."

Number 0995

CHAI R DYSON suggested that this matter shows the care with which
all regulations and [legislation] ought to be considered. [ HB

464 was hel d over.]

HB 407- CERTI FI CATE OF NEED PROGRAM

CHAI R DYSON announced the next order of business, HOUSE BILL NO
407, "An Act relating to the certificate of need program”

Number 1010
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, sponsor of HB 407, noted that the
proposed conmittee substitute (CS), Version F, is significantly

different fromthe first draft; it is a continuation of efforts
to which he'd commtted hinself in the [House Community and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 26, 2002



Regi onal Affairs Standing Commttee]; he said he has given a
copy [of Version F] to sone nenbers of that committee.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Version F [22-LS1389\F,
Lauterbach, 3/21/02], as the work draft. There being no
obj ection, Version F was before the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remnar ked:

This has been likened to a youngster comng out of
college [with] a counseling degree and getting hooked
up with a ... 40-year dysfunctional marriage ... and
wading in with that kind of trepidation. There still
are sone basic principles of operation that even a
young counselor can bring to a situation.

Number 1121

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL told nenbers that one reason he canme to
the legislature was to preserve and protect a free-narket
econony. He objects to having health care nationalized, nore
soci alized, and driven by the government, he said; based on that
obj ection, he becane involved in the certificate of need (CON)
debat e. The CON in Alaska requires that if sonmeone w shes to
increase services or facilities that cost in excess of one
mllion dollars, perm ssion nust be sought from the governnent.
He explained that the [state] has rules, based primarily on
[federal law], that determ ne whether this new facility or
service will be allowed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said although the federal governnent
abandoned this system sonme years ago because it wasn't cost-
effective and was creating problens, Al aska continues to use it.
He acknowl edged that the [CON is warranted] in certain

ci rcunst ances, but expressed his intention to repeal it
conpletely from [state |law], which [Version F] acconplishes,
with sone safeguards: a time limt and greater accountability
for a governnent-controlled process. He said it allows for the

best free-market circunstances when possible. Speaking strongly
agai nst governnent - prot ected nonopolies, he said Al aska has many
exanpl es, especially with regard to the CON. Although a |ot of
public nmoney goes into health care, he suggested this [bill] is
a good sol ution.

Nunber 1270

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2002



RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that Section 1 is the crux of

Representative Coghill's initial intent. It would require, with
the exception of skilled nursing facilities and psychiatric
hospitals, a CON for expenditures of one mllion dollars or nore
in communities wth a population of less than 55, 000.

Therefore, a [proposed facility] in a conmunity |larger than this
woul dn't require a CON unless it was a [skilled] nursing
facility or a psychiatric hospital.

M5. MOSS turned attention to Section 2 and reported that during
di scussion with the departnment and Senator G een, sone flaws
[were observed] in the system one of which Section 2 seeks to

addr ess. Currently, if a facility is destroyed, it cannot be
replaced without a new CON, Section 2 therefore elimnates the
need for a new CON. It also elimnates an existing requirenment

for a new CON if a facility noves services from one building to
anot her, provided the capacity and categories of service have
not changed.

Number 1358

M5. MOSS noted that Section 3 requires the departnent to adopt
regulations to set a time limt for the departnment to determ ne
whet her an application is conplete. Section 4 requires the
departnment to set a time [imt by which public hearings nust be
held; it also requires the departnment to nake a determ nation on
an application within 120 days following the determ nation that
an application is conplete.

M5. MOSS turned to Section 5 and said CONs were originally put
in statute to apply only to nursing facilities. A seven-step
review process is in place for the review of nursing hones'
CONs. As additional [facilities] were added under the CON
requi renent, a new, broad statute was added. She noted that the
sectional [analysis] provides the repeal ed | anguage; she pointed
out that the only standard for review was "that if the
avai lability and quality of existing health care resources, or
the accessibility to those resources, is less than the current
or projected requirenent for health services required to
mai ntain good health of the citizens in this state.” Based on
this standard, a CON could be issued. This is found in AS
18. 07. 041.

M5. MOSS indicated Version F rolls all other types of facilities

into the nore defined standard of review found in AS 18.07.043.
She said Sections 6 through 10 are sinply technical changes that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2002



remove AS 18.07.041 from existing statutes. Section 11 repeals
AS 18.07.041; Section 12 gives applicability of the new statute
only to those CON applications filed on or after the effective
date; and Section 13 is an i medi ate-effective-date cl ause.

Nunber 1477

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL requested that testinmony on HB 407 be
permtted for the next two commttee neetings. He noted that
some Wi tnesses were unable to attend the March 28 neeti ng.

Number 1515
CHAI R DYSON asked whi ch communities HB 407 would apply to.

M5. MOSS responded that criteria were created to arrive at the
[ 55, 000] nunber; according to the US. Census Bureau, a
comunity nust have a population of 25,000 for data from that
comunity to supply [reliable] denographic data. The nationa
poverty rate was applied to this nunber; Alaska is automatically
25 percent above that federal poverty rate. Thi s adj ust nent
resulted in [a figure of 31,250]. She explained that three
different levels of poverty are applied to nedical services:
150, 175, and 200 percent. The m ddle percent, 175, was applied
to the 31,250 to result in 54,688, this was rounded off to
[ 55, 000] .

CHAI R DYSON asked what poverty has to do with this.
M5. MOSS replied:

Just the level of need for nedical assistance - how
the federal governnment has defined it. You' ve heard
in debates about Denali KidCare, for instance, that
noney may go further if we reduce those poverty
| evel s. But the truth of the fact is, that's what's
the feds use. W're dealing with Medicaid noney here,
so we're applying those percentage because of the
Medi cai d i nvol venent.

Number 1600

CHAI R DYSON of f er ed:

I|"mvery sure | don't understand the logic trail. But
it may be that the governnent doesn't have a firm
logic trail. | thought the argument about certificate

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- March 26, 2002



of [need] had to do with the significant capital
investnment it takes to build a major facility. And
the argunment is that in smaller comunities, if
i ndeed, there's too nuch conpetition, then there won't
be the economc incentive and the return on investnent

for folks to invest in building one. So, | thought
t hat C the rationale was to protect smaller
comunities from having ... fractured providers, all
of whom were below sone econom c threshold. What ' s

that got to do with Medicare or poverty?

M5. MOSS reiterated that this issue involves Mdicaid; the

decision was that this should involve the "federal |[ogic"

which was all that was available - rather than arbitrarily
selecting a [population] figure. She said three [loca
gover nnment s in Alaska would qualify under [the 55,000
popul ati on] nunber: Anchorage, the Fairbanks North Star

Bor ough, and t he Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough.
Nunber 1663

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL acknow edged getting creative in arriving
at the figure, but indicated the basic question remains of the
significant investnment in the snmaller comunities. He asked at
what point there should be sone scrutiny in a limted market,
and at what point it would be considered a grow ng market and
therefore not require proof of [market] limtation. He offered
his belief that a handful of comrunities fall into [this latter
description].

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said he was wlling to discuss the
[ popul ati on] nunber, since it is a bit arbitrary; part of the
di scussion pertains to the size of a conmunity resulting in a
finite market wherein conpetition could not happen. He offered
his perspective that the market could handle this, and indicated
astoni shnent that soneone [m ght build an unnecessary facility];
he allowed, however, that this does happen as a result of poor
judgment calls. "I'mnot always sure that the governnment is the
best answer,"” he said. He reiterated that he was open to
di scussi on. He concluded by saying the Mdicaid and Medicare
expenditures were significant throughout the state.

Number 1733
CHAIR DYSQN, in response to Representative Cissna, expressed his

wish to hear from the admnistration and sone wtnesses in

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2002



opposition to HB 407, to allow nenbers to get a sense of the
argunents and to eval uate rel evant correspondence.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL concurr ed.

Nunber 1799

ELVMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and
Social Services (DHSS), cane forward and told nenbers, "I'll be
nore than happy to nuddy the waters for you on this one.” He
expl ai ned that the CON program inpacts the departnent in severa

ways on different l|evels, which is confusing. He said DHSS

operates the CON program which consists of one enployee in the
facility section of the Division of Adm nistrative Services.

MR. LINDSTROM referred to the sponsor's nention of the federa
government's creation of, and subsequent backing away from the
CON program This is not all the federal governnent backed away
from M. Lindstrom pointed out. When the CON program was
created in Alaska and many other states as a result of federal
law, a range of health-planning activities went along with it.
States were expected to have a state health program funding

went into regional health planning. He said, "Al of that
superstructure has di sappeared over tine. In fact, we have not
had a state health plan witten ... since, | think, 1983." The

resulting lack of current health data precludes a thorough
eval uation and well-reasoned findings with regard to the review
of CONs, he indicated - a job that is difficult wthout this
i nformation.

Nunber 1902

MR.  LINDSTROM offered another departnment perspective: t he
departnment pays substantial health care costs, primarily through
the Medicaid program which insures about one of every six

Al askans. For certain types of facility-based services
including long-term care or nursing honme beds, DHSS is, for al
practical purposes, the payor. A non- Medi caid-eligible person
upon entering a nursing facility will likely becone Medicaid-
eligible wthin several nonths because assets wll be spent
down; in all likelihood, this person will end up on Meudi caid.

MR. LI NDSTROM reported that DHSS pays 85 percent of the costs
for nursing home beds in Alaska. It is also a primary payor for
acute-care psychiatric beds; generally, nore is spent for
children's services than for adults, but for all psychiatric
care the state is the nmjor payor. On the other hand, DHSS is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2002



not the major payor for other kinds of acute-care costs; it
covers 20 percent of the nmarket. Consequently, DHSS is
concerned about the CON prograns’ nmintaining integrity for
cost-contai nment purposes proportionate to the anount the
departnment pays. He said, "W're very concerned about |ong-term
care costs and controlling ... the nunber of nursing hone beds
and the nunber of psychiatric beds. W are, as a payor, |ess
concerned about certain other types of care.”

Number 1980

CHAI R DYSON asked, "Your worry is that wth conpetition
those providers might not ... have a |large enough share of the
mar ket that they can make a living, so they jack their rates up,
and your costs will go up?"

MR. LI NDSTROM replied, "That's true.” He indicated Chair Dyson
had broached another conplex issue, the Medicaid rate-setting
system for facilities; he acknow edged he was not an expert in
that field. Capital costs becone part of a facility's rate, he
explained; to the extent a comunity overcapitalizes the system
inefficiencies are brought into the system and are reflected in
the rate paid to the facilities through Medicaid.

MR.  LINDSTROM returned to the subject of the CON from the

departnent's perspective - specifically, the public health
per spective. He said DHSS is concerned about access to health
care throughout the state. The CON provides a process for

communities to rationally plan and understand what type of
health care is needed in that comunity; the departnent thinks
this is a good process.

Number 2053

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her Al aska has exanpl es where the presence
of too many providers is driving up costs.

MR. LI NDSTROM of fered to find out.
Number 2075

MR. LI NDSTROM noted that Section 1 of the bill differentiates
between larger and smaller comunities in determ ning whether a
CON is required. He offered the departnent's concurrence that
Anchor age, Fairbanks, and the WMatanuska-Susitna ("Mat-Su") area
would be exenmpt from the requirenent for CONs, except for
nursing hone facilities and sone construction of psychiatric

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- March 26, 2002



beds; he noted the departnment's support for that change.
Intuitively, he offered, one would acknow edge that the nmarket
in Anchorage is very different fromthe nmarket in a snmall, rural
comunity. He said, however, that the departnment also believes
the Anchorage market significantly differs from the Fairbanks

market; |ikewi se, both differ from the market in the Mat-Su
ar ea.

Nunber 2128

MR.  LINDSTROM said the departnment doesn't have the data,
under st andi ng, or capacity to finely under st and t hose
distinctions. "W can't tell you whether or not it nakes sense

to make this distinction,” he said. He reiterated that | unping
the larger markets together nekes sense intuitively. Wuld it
hurt the local hospital in Fairbanks or Mat-Su if there were a
[large] freestanding anbulatory surgical center? He said he
couldn't answer that question; as a result, the departnent has
sonme reservations.

Nunber 2162

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA offered her belief that the health care
industry is the fastest-growi ng sector of the private econony.

MR. LINDSTROM replied, "I believe that's true." In further
response, he said this lack of data is, sadly, not unique; the
capacity DHSS once had for planning and the ability to

understand these issues no |onger exists. The departnment no
| onger has the ability to gather, sort, and understand that
i nformation. He reiterated that the state has not witten a

heal t h plan since 1983.

CHAI R DYSON noted that he wi shed to hear from other w tnesses as
well. He asked M. Lindstrom follow ng Representative WIson's
next question, to summarize the departnent's concerns; he said
M. Lindstromwoul d have other opportunities to present input.

Number 2230

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said 14 states have repealed the CON
pr ogram She asked if M. Lindstrom had been in contact wth
any of these states to find out the consequences of the change.
MR. LI NDSTROM replied that on a nunmber of occasions this issue

has been raised; the departnent has |ooked into it to summarize
what other states are doing. He expressed uncertainty about the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2002



nunber of states that have repealed the CON program but
reported that the data indicate "the significant majority" of
states have retained the CON program The [CON] criteria wdely
vary in different states for facility types and [need]
t hreshol ds, anobng ot hers, but nost states still have a
certificate of need program

Number 2274

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON surm sed that one reason is that these
states haven't gotten around to repealing the CON progranms. She
expressed interest in discovering the results in states that
[ have repealed the CON]; have Medicaid costs increased, for
exanpl e?

MR. LI NDSTROM replied that the departnment would give it another
| ook. He referenced several studies wth conflicting
conclusions on effects [of discontinuing the CON program.

MR. LI NDSTROM returned to his analysis of the bill. He said
Section 1 is mssing an anmendnent to [AS] 18.07.031(b), which
speaks only to nursing honme beds; it prohibits the conversion of
any type of bed - assisted living, acute care, or other - to a
nursing hone bed without a CON, regardless of the cost. Perhaps
this could be a new Section 2, he suggested. He said this
concern was based on the departnent's role as the primary payor
for nursing honme beds. He suggested that simlar |anguage
related to acute psychiatric care mght also be appropriate. He
referenced a suggestion from an unspecified Senate staff person
that this mght need to be nore finely tuned than that; it m ght
need to preclude conversions from adult psychiatric care to
psychiatric care for mnors. He noted that the departnment would
be glad to address this with the commttee.

Nunber 2340

MR. LI NDSTROM noted that Section 2 relates to facility
repl acenent; this would nost likely come into play should a
facility be destroyed. He said the departnent's reading of
[ Section 2] includes facilities that have reached the end of
their useful life; this would be a nore commobn occurrence than

destruction by fire or earthquake, for exanple. He said:

Intuitively, it nakes sense, | guess, that if we've
been going along with a facility in a community at "X
nunber of beds and offering this array of services,
that if they want to continue to do that, ... why

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2002



should they go through a certificate of need? But, on
the other hand - wearing the public health hat, and
the notion of having sonme sense of what is really
appropriate for a comunity - saying that it should
just be replaced assunes that what's there now nekes
sone sense.

TAPE 02-24, SIDE B

MR.  LINDSTROM noted that Alaska has a nunber of very small
hospitals; unlike in npbst states, these have not been closed

but many are "hanging on by a thread.™ He asked whether it
makes sense for the state to tell these hospitals to go ahead
and replicate the current nodel that is not working very well.
He suggested it mght nmake nore sense for a community to go
through some sort of intelligent process to ask what sort of
facility the conmmunity really needs, and can afford. He said
Section 2 would allow comunities to beg that question, and that
DHSS isn't certain it is a good idea.

MR.  LINDSTROM told nenbers that DHSS needs to review the
timeframes in Section 3. He said he was uncertain whether the
departnment would have objection to Sections 3 and 4. He
expressed his opinion that Section 5 is "quite good." He
referenced the proposed repealed |anguage [in AS 18.07.041];
that standard existed for everything until several years ago,
when the legislature created new, nore rigorous, standards for
nursi ng hones; the departnent wanted to see this happen because
it is the [primary payor] for nursing hones. He offered that
the departnent believes these standards are applicable to other
types of facilities, and that it would support having these be
put into statute. He added that the standards may need "a tweak
or two" fromthe departnent’'s perspective.

Number 2305

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her the departnment woul d have brought this
forward if the sponsor hadn't done so.

MR. LINDSTROM said he didn't believe so. The departnment has
many other priorities, and this wouldn't have risen to a |evel
requiring pursuit.

CHAIR DYSON asked Representative Coghill whet her he had
di scussed the aforenentioned itens with the departnent.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2002



REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said no; he expressed reluctance to
include sone of the itenms in [Version F], but agreed that the
di scussion would take place now that the departnment is present.
He expressed his appreciation for M. Lindstroms stated
concerns, which give him a better understanding of [the issues
fromthe departnent's perspective].

Number 2240

JEROME SELBY, Regional Director; Planning, Developnent, and
Advocacy; Providence Health System in Alaska ("Providence"),

expl ained that he was currently working in Kodiak. I n response
to Chair Dyson, he affirnmed that he had reservations about the
bill, but said there are some good provisions. He indicated

that the Hospital Association provided sone of the suggested
[language in Version F]; he expressed appreciation for the
sponsor's incorporating these suggestions. He said he wished to
offer a technical change to Section 2 and then focus on the
maj or concern that [Providence] has with the bill

CHAIR DYSON suggested that M. Selby address the technica
change with Representative Coghill [later] because the conmttee
would not [nove] the bill at this hearing. He noted his
interest in hearing M. Selby's mjor concerns about the concept
of nodifying the certificate of need.

Number 2200

MR. SELBY reported that the major concern he referenced is the
i ssue of t he 55, 000- popul ati on criterion. He not ed
[ Providence's] inability to find how that figure relates to "the
real world." He suggested that allowing a "feeding frenzy" of
spendi ng noney for unnecessary nedical facilities in Al aska's
three largest comunities will reap a cost to the state that far
exceeds any fiscal note the commttee has yet seen. He

expressed concern that [HB 407] is not about conpetition in the
medi cal industry; there is currently a great deal of conpetition
in the Anchorage nedical conmmunity, for exanple. The CON
mai ntains the conpetition on a |level playing field and controls
costs to the state, he explained. A CON neans that health care
will be developed in the state based on needed services, rather
than a "whatever the nmarket will bear"” basis; he suggested the
|atter would happen if the CON were renoved. He added his
belief that the state will bearing [the costs] of nobst of the
market in this situation.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2002



MR. SELBY noted that conpetition is perceived as a good thing in
the U S. Al though it is great when it relates to used cars,
however, he said it isn't "the main thing that you want to be

| ooking at in a health care delivery system"” For exanple, a
person schedul ed for heart surgery won't be seeking the cheapest
price. He told menbers, "That's the problem when you start
trying to nove a pure conpetition nodel into a health care

delivery system where one of the big issues is quality of care.”

MR. SELBY noted that a report released in January indicates a
21-percent increase in nortality in states that have no CON,
this is a nationw de study; the second sobering conclusion of
the study is that states with a CON have 84 percent greater use

of existing facilities. He explained that [high use] neans the
volunme is |arge enough that health care personnel stay conpetent
and maintain high skills. When too many facilities are built

and each facility has little volune, quality "goes right down
the drain" because staff aren't practicing enough of any one
[ procedure] to maintain a high level of skill. He cautioned
that quality is a huge concern.

VR. SELBY noted the fourth concern from Providence's
per specti ve: if the 55,000-population limt is used to include
Anchorage and Fairbanks, "tertiary care” wll be destroyed in
the state. He said, "The only way that we can pay for taking
care of tertiary-care patients in Alaska is to take the profits
that we do nake fromthings |like surgery and ... plow them back
into the systemin order to develop tertiary care.”

Nunber 2032
CHAI R DYSON asked for a definition of "tertiary care.”

MR SELBY said it is care such as advanced cancer care or

advanced heart care; it requires specialists and technical
nmedi cal equi prment for delivery, and has huge overhead costs. He
remarked, "You'll end up sending tertiary care back to Seattle
and points south.” He noted that Providence has, in the past 20
years of the CON |aw, been returning any net gains to tertiary
care systens in Al aska. This allows residents to remain in
Al aska for high-level cancer and heart treatnents, whereas
previously residents were required to go to Seattle. [ Renoval
of the CON] would preclude further devel opnent of this type of
care. He offered to provide further details to interested
menbers.

Number 1978

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2002



CHAIR DYSON informed M. Selby that he would have another
opportunity to testify and answer questions. [HB 407 was held
over. |

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

University of Al aska Board of Regents

CHAIR DYSON announced the next order of business, t he
confirmati on hearings for appointees to the University of Al aska
Board of Regents.

Number 1921

MARK BEGQ CH, Appointee to the University of Alaska Board of
Regents, testified via tel econference. He told nenbers he was
interested in serving on the board for a variety of reasons

First, the wuniversity system throughout the state is a huge
opportunity for econom c devel opnent as the state continues to
nove in new directions; the university will not only serve as a
potential catalyst, but can serve as a training ground for many
of those related jobs. He explained that his last five years he
has served as the chair of the student |oan corporation. He has
worked with the administration and the |egislature through this
position in a bipartisan approach to inprove the performance of
the student |oan corporation, fromits dismal situation five or
Six years ago, to today's position as a successful corporation
producing a revenue stream back to the state; it offers |ower
interest rates and nore opportunities for students to further
their education. He offered that the skills he was able to use
in that role could be brought to the Board of Regents to work
wi t h hi gher education.

Nunber 1848

MR. BEA CH noted that he has worked the past eight nonths on a
tenporary basis with the board. One area of strong interest to
himis the devel opnent of a strategic plan for the university as
a statewi de system He said the board enbarked on a programtwo
nonths ago, at a retreat where he chaired the planning and
devel opnment conmittee to begin the strategic planning process;
this process will engage the community around the state, as well
as the wuniversity canpuses, in determining what is the best
focus of energies to ensure the systemis the best possible for
Al askan students.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2002



MR BEACH concluded by saying he is a big supporter of
education, which he believes is an inportant conponent for
economc growh in the state. He has spent many years focusing
on issues surrounding youth and working in the field of
education, he said, noting his desire to dedicate his skills and
time toward helping the university and the state wth higher
educati on. He related his excitenent at the incredible
opportunity for the education system and said he wants to
contribute in sone way.

Number 1799

REPRESENTATI VE = STEVENS asked M. Begich to discuss his
commtnment to the mssion of the community col |l ege concept.

MR BEGQ CH noted that this issue was addressed at the retreat.

He indicated he likes to talk about the wuniversity as an
evol uti on. He offered his view that there is a desperate need
to deal with needs in local communities. For exanple, two-

thirds of the students attending the University of Alaska
Anchorage (UAA) are not necessarily full-tinme, four-year-degree
students; rather, they are seeking additional education to
inprove current job situations, change jobs, or acquire new
skills to reenter the job market.

MR. BEGQ CH suggested this is nore than a [conmmunity college
concept], and is an inportant part of the wuniversity system
For students who want to change or advance their careers, this
neans [addressing] sone sense of +the corporate college or
corporate conponent that UAA and other canpuses have. He
offered his belief that these are inportant conponents, and said
the satellite canpuses are very inportant to the system

Nunber 1716

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS comented that Alaska is facing an
enornous teacher and nursing shortage. He asked M. Begich
about his intentions to resolve those shortage issues.

MR BEG CH replied that before comng online he'd listed four
job classes that are currently recruiting outside of Al aska:
police/public safety officers, fire and paranedic personnel,
nurses and other health care professionals, and teachers. These
are fairly well-paying jobs, but out-of-state recruitnent |evels
[are high], which isn't a good thing. The wuniversity has an
incredible role beyond its current role of recruiting students
from high school to the system he added.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- March 26, 2002



MR. BEG CH nentioned working hand-in-hand with K-12 education to
hel p to focus young people on career paths that are available in
Al aska, well paid, and abundant. He said it is not just a
matter of the wuniversity working in isolation to create
appropriate prograns; rather, it is critical to work with K-12
education so students are, early in high school, thinking about
the wuniversity system to get a teaching certificate or a
juvenile justice degree to becone a police officer or
speci al i st. This is his approach, he noted; it is a system
connected with the rest of the education community.

Number 1627

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked him to expound on the role of the
satellite [prograns] around the state and how to capitalize on
t hese.

MR BEG CH replied that, frankly, he is still |earning about the
system he is attenpting to visit sonme of the rural |ocations
for graduation cerenponies and to |learn nore about the needs of
the satellite prograns. He indicated there are opportunities
that mght be nore cost-effective; for exanple, rather than
creating a new program in the urban areas, [the system coul d]
enhance what exists in sonme of the satellite locations and train
people for job opportunities that exist there, or increase
students' education attainnent |evel. He said he doesn't have
specific plans, but is in a "learning curve"; he offered his
belief that there is value in these prograns and that they are
an integral part of their comunities. He suggested that they
can becone nore connected by creating job opportunities, and
that urban students m ght want to go to the satellite [prograns]
for specialized training.

Nunber 1551

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA noted that [M. Begich] is in her
district, and that she has known his famly nost of her 35 years
in the state; she has attended a nunber of the sane community
councils for the past ten years with him She referenced his
resune and pointed out that itens relate to at-risk children and
include his participation in the prograns; for exanple, he plays
basketball wth kids at the MLaughlin [Youth Center]. She
suggested he is conmtted to making sure youths in the state
have a decent chance [at success].

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ai ned that the core classes, from one

university canpus to the next, are different. This makes it
difficult for students wishing to transfer from one canpus to
anot her. She asked M. Begich for his thoughts on naking core

classes such as English nore standard across the state to
facilitate snooth transfers.

MR BEG CH replied that this matter was recently addressed. He
said this seens like a sinple question, but has an answer that
is nore conplicated than he believes it should be. He said the
board has asked himto serve on the academc affairs committee,
which likely will address this issue. It is not only difficult
to transfer credits from one canpus to another, it wll be a
critical as the wuniversity noves into web-based education
progr ans.

MR BEG CH said, "You don't want to be in a situation where
when soneone is applying to get a degree from the University of

Al aska, ... they have to now be concerned about is that

class that I'mtaking online, is it UM or is it UAF [University
of Al aska Fairbanks]?" This creates a problem and isn't
seanless to the student. He explained that the prinmary consuner
is the student. Sonme of these processes are not very student-

oriented in the sense of nmaking it easy to nove within the
system He indicated this would be a priority for him This is
especially inmportant for our nobile population; the credits need
to be transferable, especially in the core classes. "Engli sh
101 in Anchorage or 101 in Fairbanks shouldn't be much
different," he concl uded.

Nunber 1314

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG expressed appreciation to [M. Begich]
for his conmtnment to the community and the state, noting that
he has followed M. Begich's public service career over the
years. He thanked M. Begich and conveyed his certainty that he
woul d serve as a regent in an exenplary manner.

Number 1251

MARLENE JOHNSON, Appointee to the University of Al aska Board of
Regents, testified via tel econference. She noted her interest
and involvenent in education in Alaska, particularly rural
Al aska. Oiginally from Hoonah, where she was on the school
board for 26 years, she has served in different capacities for
the wuniversity system including being a regent for the

uni versity foundation and serving on the School of Fisheries and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- March 26, 2002



Ccean Sciences advisory commttee for eight years, until she was
appointed to the Board of Regents. She expl ai ned that she has
been involved in youth and education program she served on
Governor Hammond's early childhood conmttee, Governor Cowper's
comm ssion on children and youth, and the statewi de Head Start
boar d. She explained that the Board of Regents is an
opportunity to help with the recruitnent and retention of rura
Al askan students in higher education.

REPRESENTATI VE  STEVENS renmarked that he appreciates M.
Johnson's service. He asked for her intentions in the area of
fisheries and ocean sciences if she is appointed to serve on the
Board of [ Regents].

M5. JOHNSON replied that the School of Fisheries and GCcean
Sci ences has an opportunity to becone one of the nost inportant
econom ¢ devel opnment functions for Al aska. She offered that
fisheries has an inportant role in enploying so many people in
the state; the school is needed at this critical tine for the
sal non industry. She noted that she would be the liaison from
the board to the school.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked Ms. Johnson for her service.
Number 1080

JOSEPH HARDENBROOK, Appointee to the University of Alaska Board
of Regents, testified via teleconference, noting that he is a
student at UAF who cane to Alaska in 1996 as a National Merit
Schol ar. He reported that since he has been a student at UAF
he has been active in local and statew de student governnent,
devel opi ng student canpaigns for full funding for the university
system

MR. HARDENBROCOK said he has sought to focus on partnering his
learning with service at the wuniversity; he has served in
several student governnent roles, the UAF honors program the UA
Foundati on, the Al aska 20/20 conference, and several conmmttees
and working groups at the wuniversity. He said, "I've really
tried to make service an integral part of ny education, but at
the sane tinme trying to focus on ny academ c achievenent as
wel |." He explained that he has maintained a 3.6 grade-point
average and has nmde the dean's or chancellor's lists all but
one senester.

MR. HARDENBROOK offered that the reason he seeks to serve on the
board is to focus on the quality and accessibility of higher

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 26, 2002



education in Al aska. He expressed his belief that the role of
the student regent is to bring a student perspective to the
board and to work with students as the wuniversity devel ops.
This "changing face of higher education” includes a focus not
only on bachelor's, master's, and Ph.D. degrees, but also on
continuing education that is so inportant for a devel oping state
| i ke Al aska, he expl ained. He concluded, "I'm really excited
about the University of Al aska and what it offers to the state.
That's the reason why ... |I'm always eager to come down to
Juneau and talk to you fol ks about how inportant the university
is to me and to the other students that | interact with on a
daily basis."

Number 0970

CHAIR DYSON asked [M. Har denbrook] where he was from
originally.

MR. HARDENBROOK answered that he graduated from high school in
| daho. In further response, he said he plans to receive a
bachelor's degree in My in political sci ence, and an
associ ate's degree next year in culinary arts.

Number 0932

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted his appreciation for the tine [M.
Har denbrook] has spent and wll spend in service. He asked
about any areas that M. Hardenbrook perceives the university
shoul d be noving, but is not.

MR. HARDENBROOK offered his inpression that the university needs

to focus on accessibility of higher education. In many ot her
states, when one talks about a college degree, one focuses on
the costs. In Alaska, however, the typical student is not a 19-
year-old fresh out of high school, Iliving in the dorm and

eating in the cafeteria; rather, he/she is a single parent or
soneone working full-time taking courses on the side.
Accessibility in Al aska neans having the courses avail able when
the students need them he pointed out. This is a matter that
the university has begun to address, but it needs to continue.
It is a matter of |ooking at when courses are offered and using
di stance-delivery options.

CHAI R DYSON remar ked, "W hope you stay in the state.”

[ Al though there was no formal notion, the confirmations of the
t hree appoi ntees were treated as advanced fromcommttee.]

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 26, 2002



HB 408- STUDENT QUESTI ONNAI RES AND SURVEYS

CHAI R DYSON announced the next order of business, HOUSE BILL NO
408, "An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys adm nistered
in the public schools.™

Number 0799

REPRESENTATI VE CON BUNDE, Al aska State Legislature, presented HB
408 on behalf of the House Special Committee on Education,
sponsor, which he chairs. He informed nenbers that a couple of
years ago the legislature changed how surveys - particularly
those about youth risk behavior - require permssion from
parents. In the past there was a "passive perm ssion" process,
but now a statenment nust be sent to the student's honme, signed
by the parents, and returned. However, school districts have
found the current requirenent expensive and time-consum ng but
not very productive because so few permssion slips are

ret ur ned. Therefore, HB 408 changes the requirenment to allow
school districts to admnister anonynous questionnaires and
surveys, like the Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey (YRBS), based on

"passive consent" by parents.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE noted that to be statistically sound,

surveys require about a 60-percent return rate. In 1995 and
1999, when passive consent was required, the percentage of
return was "in the md-60s." In response to questions from

menbers, he clarified that by "return rates” he neant the
response rate; that he was speaking about the nunber of students
taking the survey, "allowing for those that actively opted out";
and that a m d-60s percentage of return is good.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE reported that when active perm ssion becane
required, by contrast, the return rate dropped to less than 30
percent, not enough of a return to be statistically significant.
Consequently, schools districts and social services prograns
that focus on preventing youth risk behaviors have been unable
to justify their federal grants or effectively evaluate prograns
in place; the latter is his greater area of concern, he noted.
Chair Bunde pointed out that this situation puts youths, "at
| east those that would listen to counseling and advice from
schools,” at risk, and puts the availability of grants at risk
as wel | .

Number 0590

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 26, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS), version 22-LS1458\C, Ford, 3/21/02, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version C was before the
committee.

Nunmber 0560

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE explained that Version C is a technical
change. The original version neglected to include a phrase in
the current statute: “"that inquires into personal or private
famly affairs of the student not a matter of public record or
subj ect to public observation".

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE pointed out that these surveys are

vol unt ary. The bill still protects the rights of parents and
students to refuse to participate in surveys they find
t roubl esone. Districts still would be required to give parents

two weeks' notice of the survey; provide a copy of the survey;
and tell them how it would be admnistered, how the results
woul d be used, who would have access to the information, and how
to refuse permssion for their children to take part.

Nunmber 0499

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE noted that this bill, which was requested
by the admnistration, was generated by the House Speci al
Commttee on Education after discussion with various entities.
Those in support include the Association of [Alaska] School
Boards, the Anchorage School District and Anchorage School
Board, the Safe and Drug Free Schools organization, the
Sout heast Al aska Regi onal Health Consortium Al askans for
Tobacco-Free Kids, the [Al aska] Heart Association, the Nationa
Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence, the Southeast
Regi onal Resource Center, and "nmany social services providers
who woul d be inpacted by the ability to work wth these students
and provide their services." He said people from both the
"educational arena" and the admnistration were available to
testify and answer questions.

Nunmber 0382

LI SA TORKELSON testified via tel econference, noting that she is
a parent of two children and a "contributor to the big noney pot
in the sky." She recalled that three years ago, HB 70 passed
with only three "nay" votes between the House and Senate and was
signed into |aw by the governor. Now, she said, HB 408 "rips
the heart out of HB 70 wunder the guise of mnor cosnetic

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- March 26, 2002



surgery.” Wereas parents were specifically added to the
process previously - wupon the request of parents - HB 408
"carves them out.”™ \Wiile it appears to change little from the
original |egislation, she asserted, what renmains doesn't include
parents.

M5. TORKELSON referred to the schools' position that this
| egislation is needed to do the Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey and

obtain federal grant noney. She said HB 70 didn't end survey
collection and that nothing in current law prohibits school
districts from getting information they want. Ms. Torkel son

tol d nenbers:

All we ask is that they notify parents of their
i ntentions. Perm ssion is only required for inquiries
into personal and famly affairs, and to pronpbte
ef ficiency. Bl anket perm ssion was allowed at the
begi nni ng of each school year, as was suggested during
the registration process, when parents and students
are al ready signing other paperwork.

M5. TORKELSON recalled that the Departnent of Education put in a
zero fiscal note to HB 70 in 1999. She suggested if schoo

districts believe there is a huge cost burden, they should
discuss it with the departnment [now the Departnment of Education
and Early Devel opnent]. She said the goal was to include
parents in the l|oop, but not make the process onerous and
cunbersone for schools. Under HB 408, she said, there no |onger
woul d be a checks-and-bal ances system She pointed out that it
isn't limted to the YRBS, but can include a survey or
guestionnaire on any subject.

Number 0150

M5. TORKELSON referred to page 1, lines 6-7 and line 11 [of HB
408, Version (. She said as long as anonymty is maintained,
the district's inquiring about students, their famlies, or any
ot her subject would be totally perm ssible; current |aw at | east
requires notification for every other type of nonpersona

survey. "This keeps parents in the |oop, but provides nore of a
"heads up' and requires an active role," she said. Despite
having read HB 408 nunerous times, she said it isn't clear to
her whether notification is required for anonynous surveys, but
added, "If Representative Bunde says that they are, perhaps
it is.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 26, 2002



M5. TORKELSON told nenbers that HB 70 had narrowly defined
"questionnaire or survey", but that the definition no |onger
exists in HB 408. She referred to Representative Bunde's
comment that because schools are finding it difficult to get
parents' permi ssion, the onus should be renoved from parents.
She pointed out that perhaps parents don't want their kids
surveyed.

M5. TORKELSON said parents are the best judges of what their
children should be exposed to, and when. "Long ago, it was
decided that children below the age of majority were going to be
under their parents' jurisdiction," she noted. "This is still
true today, no matter how noble the cause, when ... schools want
to ask personal and probing questions. Parents still have a
right to respond with their child' s best interest in mnd."

M5. TORKELSON concl uded by saying HB 70 was all about protecting
parents, whereas HB 408 is all about protecting funding for
bur eaucr aci es. She requested that nenbers support parents

rights and vote "do not pass" on HB 408. She asked Chair Dyson
how he planned to respond to HB 408.

TAPE 02-25, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R DYSON answered that he would be voting "no."

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if the anonymity of these surveys
factors into Ms. Torkel son's concern.

M5. TORKELSON replied, "Not really." She indicated the
commttee packet should include an article relating to teachers
in Oregon who were "snooping" - the teachers were premarking
anonynous surveys and thus the opportunity to find out about [a
student's activities] was great. M. Torkel son pointed out that
teachers aren't trained to ensure anonynmity when conducting
surveys. She said as a parent, she feels |leery about having

surveys admnistered wthout her know edge, just Dbecause
[anonymty can't be ensured].

Nunber 0172
REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA related her belief that state governnent
in Alaska is increasingly concerned with the quality of what the

public sector does for the private sector; accountability
regardi ng services neans that questions have to be asked. As a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- March 26, 2002



par ent, Representative Cissna acknow edged M. Tor kel son' s
concern, but asked regarding services, "How do we get there?"

M5. TORKELSON answered, "Just include parents in the process

that's all we're asking." She enphasized that [if |egislators]
are interested in what parents want schools to provide, they
should ask the parents. These surveys ask fairly persona

gquestions; furthernore, there is no guarantee that survey
results are accurate. She concluded by saying nore accurate
informati on woul d be obtained if parents were incl uded.

Nunber 0425

CAROL  COVEAU, Superi nt endent, Anchorage  School District,
testified via teleconference in support of [Version C], saying
it allows for surveys [the district] feels are necessary. She
pointed out that [the district] has used the previously passed
l egislation in contacting parents for consent for surveys;
t housands of dollars have been spent in postage and hiring extra
people to phone parents and ask them to return the perm ssion
slips, even though the information 1is included 1in the
registration packets at the beginning of the school vyear.
However, many hi gh school students don't bring their parents to
school with them for registration, especially juniors and
seniors who are able to drive.

M5. COVEAU reported no success in receiving [parental consent]
via mail, either. She conveyed belief that giving two weeks'
notice to parents of the intention to conduct a survey, and
following the criteria in Version C, would allow the district to
provide for adequate parental perm ssion. Thus those who want
to opt out could do so, and arrangenents could be made for those
students during the survey. M. Coneau further said:

W believe this would address a nmjor concern for
Anchor age. W have lost ... a substantial nunber of
grants that we believe are very critical to providing
sone of the educational prograns that our students
need. And we do want to be able to do pre- and post-
assessnents to see what the inpact of sonme of our
instructional prograns are in the Safe and Drug Free
School s area, particularly in the anti-bullying things
we're trying to work through wth the ©police
department and ot her agencies. So, we would very much
support this change in this proposed |egislation.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -32- March 26, 2002



CHAIR DYSON asked if a parent's signature is required on sone
docunent when a child enrolls.

M5. COVEAU replied yes. For newly enrolled students, a packet
i ncludes permssion slips; however, those aren't the students
fromwhomthe [district] has trouble obtaining perm ssion slips.
A [perm ssion slip] nust be obtained annually; thus the problem
lies with continuing students who nerely pick up registration
materials and pay fees w thout the presence of a parent.

Number 0641

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what specific grants [the Anchorage
School District] has lost or nay lose as a result of inadequate
i nformation.

M5. COVEAU specified that [the district] didn't gain the H ghway
Safety Grant this year, nor sonme conflict-resolution grants it
had successfully obtained in the past. She informed the
commttee that [the district] is currently in the process of
requesting a grant for an anti-bullying program and substance

abuse program from the state. The hope is, for the anti-
bullying grant, that the district's data [from 1995] wll
"pass,"” although it isn't current. Ms. Coneau indicated the

district has, under the latest estimate, lost $3,000 in grants
for which it had been successful in the past.

Nunmber 0708

TERRY SOLOMON, Fairbanks North Star School District, testified
via teleconference in support of [Version (. She pointed out
that [the district] has problens simlar to those in the
Anchorage School District regarding the percentage of perm ssion
slips returned. As a parent, M. Solonon said she believes it
is all right for students to answer these surveys; nothing is
bei ng hi dden from any parent.

IVB. SOLOMON referred to when there was passive parent
perm ssion; she said she didn't remenber nany parents calling to
request that their children not participate in a survey. She
echoed earlier testinony regarding the use of these statistics,
recalling her use of such statistics when applying for grants as
a nmenber of the board of directors of the Boys & Grls Cub; she
i ndi cated several United Way agencies do the sane.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- March 26, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS inquired as to the specific grants [the
Fai rbanks North Star School District] has lost or may |ose as a
result of inadequate information

M5. SOLOMON said she couldn't specifically answer the question
However, she nentioned that student surveys are often reviewed
in relation to how prograns are eval uated. Therefore, it's
difficult not to have that information.

Nunmber 0866

RI CHARD BLOCK, Christian Science Conmittee on Publication for
the State of Alaska, testified via teleconference. He expressed
hope that the committee had received his witten testinmony. M.
Bl ock sai d:

W think that the work done in 1999 to provide a
bal ance between providing what the school district or
others may regard as needed information, on the one
hand, and the parents' right to know what kind of data
are being collected and have the ability to weigh in
on whether their child should be included in such a
survey was a proper way to balance the interests. And
HB 408 tends to nove away fromthat bal ance.

MR, BLOCK related his belief that noving away from the bal ance
seens to be based on the assunption that the protections in HB
408 will work. For exanple, subsection (b) in Section 2 says
parents shall be notified, even for an anonynous questionnaire;
however, there are no specifics as to how the parent is to be
notifi ed. M. Block surmsed that if the school board argues
that mailing is too expensive, then it wouldn't intend to nai
the notice hone. Therefore, [the school board] may rely on the
student's taking the notice hone.

MR, BLOCK said from discussions with his son, a high school
teacher, he understands that even inportant docunents such as
pink slips, grade slips, [notices involving] disciplinary
matters, and notices of parent-teacher nights sonehow don't nake
it home [to the parents]; therefore, it is fair to assune a
| arge percentage of survey permi ssion slips won't make it hone,
either. Wth regard to saying the school district will provide
parental notice, he characterized it as a hollow protection
unl ess the statute specifies an effective neans of notification.
In conclusion, M. Block urged caution before changing the well -
bal anced approach of 1999.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- March 26, 2002



Nunmber 1038

JAKE METCALFE, Menber, Anchorage School Board, Anchorage School
District, testified via teleconference, noting that he is also a
parent of a child in the district. M. Metcalf announced that
t he board unani nously supports Version C

Number 1074

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what the Anchorage School District
has done in an attenpt to obtain responses from parents [who
haven't returned perm ssion slips for these surveys].

M5. COVEAU expl ained that [the district] has hired extra help in
the past two years; run "tel ephone banks"; and done nmailings to
parents, via the US. nmil, the first tinme around. It is the
followup that's been difficult. For exanple, teachers have
talked with students in class to persuade themto talk to their
parents about the inportance of returning [surveys]; however, it
appears to be difficult for students to either renenber or
comuni cate that need to their parents. Furt hernore, teachers
have been requested to ask parents about these fornms at parent-
teacher conferences; in a limted 15- or 20-m nute conference,
however, it takes tine away from di scussion of other substantive
i ssues. She concluded, "W've done everything we could think
of, in a district the size of ours, to get these returned. And
we just sinply haven't received any kind of substantial return.”

Nunber 1160

RUTHAMAE KARR, Interior Neighborhood Health Corporation (1 NHC)
testified via teleconference in support of HB 408. A
grandnother of six who lives in the Fairbanks North Star

Bor ough, she infornmed nenbers that her children [nanes
unspecified] couldn't attend and had asked her to speak on their
behalf in support of the bill. On her own behalf, she stated
support for HB 408 as well. She nentioned working on a tobacco-
related grant; she indicated it is hard to evaluate tobacco-
related behavior, wite grants, and deternm ne effectiveness
[ W t hout surveys].

Number 1211
DEE HUBBARD testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
408, noting that she lives in Sterling. She recalled that the

survey nentioned was her main reason for supporting introduction
of HB 70 a few years back; she believed the survey to be

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- March 26, 2002



extrenely intrusive and didn't want her children taking it, nor
did she recall that nuch information was given about it.
Al t hough she'd talked to the principal and discovered her child
wasn't involved, it was up to her to do the legwork, she told

menbers. She'd felt then that parents needed nore information
she said, and still believes they should have another way to
participate in school districts' decision making. She rel ated

her wunderstanding that the survey continues to be given in
m ddl e school, which includes sixth graders.

M5. HUBBARD told nenbers she also sees HB 408 as an attenpt by
t he Anchor age School District, t hr ough t he Anchor age
[legislative] caucus, to negate a law it doesn't |like

Referring to Ms. Coneau's testinony about attenpts to contact
parents, she suggested additional neasures could have been taken
and that the district hadn't |iked the requirenent and therefore
hadn't tried very hard to nake it work. Ms. Hubbard conveyed
her belief that an active-perm ssion process should be used as a
tool to foster nore parent participation at various |evels,
i ncl udi ng schools and districts. She said:

I|"m sorry that Anchorage is having a problem and it
sounds |ike Fairbanks is having a bit of a problem
But why should the parents and the students be
penal i zed because ... they're either doing a |lousy job
at trying to get active parent permssion or they're
just not working up to a level of being able to attain
that active parent perm ssion?

M5. HUBBARD renmarked that she is sure the Anchorage School
District is happy she lives in Sterling now She asked the
conmmttee to vote against HB 408, which she said she doesn't
agree with, doesn't support, and believes to be bad | egislation.

Nunber 1410

CHAI R DYSON call ed upon Andree MLeod, informng the commttee
that it was Ms. MLeod who got himinterested in HB 70 severa
years ago. He asked whether she had changed her convictions
si nce then.

Nunmber 1440
ANDREE MLECD testified via teleconference, answering no, she
hadn't changed her convictions. Noting that she still lives in

Anchorage, Ms. MLeod expressed amazenent that the nessage that
parents don't want these questions being asked "isn't getting to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 36- March 26, 2002



the public health professionals.” She suggested that in
addition to the Anchorage School District, public health
officials are a strong |obbying group whose funding supposedly
depends on this [survey] information. She recited several
survey questions about sexual intercourse and pregnancy, dietary
matters, and so on. She conveyed gratefulness that her son is
out of the district, noting that she'd been adamant that he not
take part in these surveys.

M5. MLEOD brought attention to 20 U S. C 8§ 1232h, saying it
mandates that these questions not be asked w thout the prior

witten consent of the parent. She recalled the hard work
required to get [HB 70 passed] in 1999, and said she is livid
about the effort to repeal it. She told nenbers that "New
Jersey is now in court” over this issue. She asked, "Do we have
the funding to go to court? Do we want to spend the ... $500
mllion of the school district ... on litigation? Do you want

your health and education funds to be spent on litigation?"
Nunber 1563

M5. MLEOD referred to Representative Cissna's inquiry about
what criteria can be used to assess the accountability of public
service besides survey results. Ms. MLeod suggested that it
should be denmanded that state public health officials becone
savvy in new conputer technology in order to get this data
Wi t hout going to every student.

M5. MLEOD turned attention to grant requests. She reported
that people in New Jersey had already gone to federal agencies
that said, "No, we're not going to give you noney"; when
requested to put it in witing, however, no federal agency put
in witing that it [nust use those nunbers as a basis]. She
suggested, therefore, that anyone denied funding should ask why;
if the reason cited is that data wasn't provided, she proposed
asking that it be put in witing.

IVB. McLEOD told nenbers she'd always opposed this  bill
intellectually, but had an experience with the Anchorage Schoo
District in which teachers and counselors, especially, at East

Hi gh School had "crossed the line regarding privacy." Ms.
McLeod said teachers can do whatever they want wth survey
i nformation. She inplored the conmmttee to protect children

from teachers and counselors who would like to know this kind of
information, and to protect the parents. She concl uded, "Leave
the parenting of values up to us."

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -37- March 26, 2002



Nunber 1715

EM LY NENON, Al aska Advocacy Manager, Anerican Cancer Society,
testified via teleconference in support of HB 408 on behal f of
both the American Cancer Society and Al askans for Tobacco-Free
Kids. She told nenbers her career and personal interests lie in
examning the ways public policy affects people's everyday
lives. Ms. Nenon said, "From this perspective, the commttee
substitute we're looking at is one of the very best kinds of
public policy." She stated:

As legislators, you all have conmtted to a
multimllion-dollar annual i nvest ment in tobacco
prevention-and-control prograns. Your constituents,
the soon-to-be-taxpayers of Alaska, wll want to know

if these progranms are worKking.

This bill will make it feasible to reinstate the Youth
Ri sk Behavi or Survey. The YRBS is the gold standard
i n yout h-behavior data collection across the country.
Wthout surveys such as this, we have no way of
knowi ng whether Alaska's investnment in youth tobacco
prevention-and-control prograns is paying off. Wth
surveys such as this, we can not only gauge our own
success, but also conpare our progress with that of
other states, and adapt our prograns for nmaxi num
efficiency and inpact. This data is the critical,
final conponent to measuring our success and living up
to the mssions and neasures of the tobacco
prevention-and-control prograns.

Tobacco is the nunber-one cause of preventable death
in Al aska. The average age that people start snoking
is 14. You have nade an investnent in changing these

facts. By providing for scientific data collection
HB 408 provides accountability to the state's tobacco-
control efforts. You are dedicating trenendous
resources to the deadly problem of tobacco use in
Al aska. Don't you want to know if ... you're doing
any good?

Nunber 1804

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Ms. Nenon what kinds of questions
are asked about tobacco and what her organizations do with that
i nformation.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 38- March 26, 2002



M5. NENON replied that as an advocate for the American Cancer
Soci ety, she has heard from state tobacco preventi on-and-control
prograns sone di scussion about questions asked regardi ng the age
at which people start using tobacco and the frequency of use,
for exanple. [A survey] also can be used to gauge the effects
on people's attitudes from a specific program from education in
schools, or from"counter-nmarketing."

Nunmber 1883

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE wapped up by addressing the possible
inference that his involvement with the legislation is "anti-
parent.” He told |isteners:

| just want to assure people that that's far from the
case. | wish we didn't live in a society where there
are sixth [graders] and seventh graders that are
having sex or doing drugs or snoking or drinking, or
whatever they're doing. But | don't think pulling ..

a bl anket over our head and pretending that that stuff

doesn't exist is ... good parenting, either.

| think good parents have active refusal. Good
parents are involved enough that they know what's
going on with these surveys, and they wll say no.

The problemisn't that too nmany parents are saying no.
The problemis, just not enough parents are even being
asked the question; the information doesn't get

home to themfor themto nake a deci sion.

A good parent would review the survey [and] neke the
decision they want their child involved or not. | ...
haven't had the experience of everyone, but | don't
have the paranoia that the school districts are out to
destroy parents.

Nunmber 1950

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA, speaking as a parent of her own daughter
as well as adopted and foster children, recounted that she'd
worked in the school an hour each week; therefore, she'd found
out what was going on in class. She said it wuld seemto be a
good exercise for parents, and a good way "to make sure things
don't happen.”

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE agreed, tine permtting [for the parent].

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 39- March 26, 2002



AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER nentioned working full-tine.
Nunber 2004

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS referred to testinony via tel econference
that districts haven't done enough to get the nessage out. He
said it appears that at |east the Anchorage School District has
spent considerable noney and tine trying to get these nessages
out . He asked Representative Bunde whether he was concerned
about that cost, whether there are solutions to getting nore
responses to the surveys, and whether the noney would be better
spent el sewhere.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE replied, "You bet; just put me in charge of
it He then said, as a husband of an elenentary schoo
teacher, he knows how difficult it is to "get stuff to go hone"
and get it back.

Number 2030

RIC I ANNCLINO, Chair, Youth on the Street, cane forward to
testify, noting that his organization is a citizens' group in
Juneau that deals with honeless teens. He referred to Dr. David
Moore, Associate Director, Safe and Drug Free Schools, who he
said also works at the University of Wshington, College of
Education, Center for the Study and Teaching of [At-Ri sk]

Students; M. lannolino said his own organization deals wth
hi gh-ri sk students as well. "W don't work for the schools,"” he
expl ai ned. "W don't work for anybody. They're a group of

citizens, many of them parents, sone honel ess students.”

MR. | ANNOLINO pointed out that honeless teens actually have
hones, but many tinmes the living situations are so difficult
that nobody would want to live there wth the parents or
famlies. Furthernore, they are honel ess because nobody has
called the police to report them m ssing. Nobody has called the
school, let alone sent a permssion slip. "W can't find
information," he told nenbers. "W can't get grants.”

MR. |1 ANNCLI NO reported that the Wiite House Ofice of Nationa
Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) has determned that surveys which
require active parental consent, as the ~current statutes
require, are invalid; they underreport various "problem health
behavi ors including those involving nmarijuana, honel essness, and
a range of other problens. He said the |legislature, as
testi nony has i ndi cat ed, currently cannot audi t t he

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -40- March 26, 2002



effectiveness of youth health progranms in Al aska because of the
| ack of data.

MR, | ANNOLINO pointed out that loss of federal funds and
conpetition for national foundation nonies are two issues;
Al askan prograns are at a disadvantage when conpeting wth
states that can offer program evaluation using valid student
surveys that don't require active parental consent. He
enphasi zed that this is a barrier to receiving a fair share of
grants relating to substance abuse, violence, or honel essness.

MR. T ANNOLINO referred to Representative Stevens' questions.
Noting that the methods are 15 percent to 30 percent of the
scoring, he said, "On the big, national, conpetitive grants, you
| ose automatically; you don't get them And we're not." He
told menbers that recent passage [by Congress] of President
Bush's "leave no child behind* education bill had renoved
mandatory active parental consent and replaced it with "guidance
for local decision meking, |local control." He offered the
foll ow ng quotation

A local educational agency that receives funds under

the applicable program shall develop and adopt
policies in consultation with parents regarding the
fol | ow ng: the right of a parent of a student to

expect, upon request of the parent, a survey created
by a third party before the survey is admnistered or
distributed by a school to a student and, i f
applicable, procedures for granting a request by a
parent for reasonable access to such survey with a
reasonable period of tine after the request is
recei ved.

MR, I ANNOLI NO said this provision allows for fully informng the
parents and allowng them to opt out of the survey. Districts
can nake decisions on an individual basis. In particular, they
can allow passive consent for critical health surveys such as
the youth health behavior survey and surveys by his own
organi zati on such as the one conducted in 1998 "on the streets.”
He tol d menbers:

W can't go into the schools; the schools here are
begging us because we have sixth graders who are
honel ess; we have m ddl e school; we have high school

So ... we want to go into the sixth grade, do a
survey, all the way through twelfth [grade], so that
we can get sonme funding. You can't give us the noney.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -41- March 26, 2002



You don't have the noney. I f you shoot our feet off,
we can't get grants, either. We're not serving
children. This is a dire situation.

MR. | ANNOLI NO concluded by saying the legislature should allow
for local control on an individualized basis for school surveys.

Number 2200

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked how many honeless youths M.
| annol i no' s organi zation deals with in a year.

MR. | ANNOLI NO offered results froma 1998 survey designed by the
McDowel | Group and conducted by his organization. He said, "The
estimate, sadly enough, was between 150 at one tine, and during
the sumrer, up to 200 honeless youth in Juneau on any one
ni ght. "

Number 2221

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that as a school nurse for nore
than nine years, she taught drug and al cohol prevention prograns
in the school system which served 4,000 students -
approximately 325 per grade. She said it isn't always that
children don't get the notes home; rather, nmany parents either
don't care or don't know what happens to these notes after the
children give them to the parents. She agreed it is difficult
to get themreturned.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked participants and announced that HB 408 woul d
be hel d over.

HB 338- APPROP: GRANTS TO PREVENT YOUTH SUl Cl DE

CHAI R DYSON announced the final order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 338, "An Act nmeking a special appropriation for a grant to
Boys and Grls Cubs of Southcentral Alaska for a youth suicide
prevention program and providing for an effective date.” [ HB
338 was sponsored by the House Conmunity and Regional Affairs
Standi ng Comm ttee.]

TAPE 02-25, SIDE B
Nunber 2272

JOHN OATES, Chief Executive Oficer, Boys & Grls dubs of

Sout hcentral Al aska, explained that HB 338 would fund a position
in each of the 32 clubhouses throughout the state. The position

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -42- March 26, 2002



would be proactive in coordinating wth schools and other
entities in the comunity to |ook for children who are at risk
and get them involved in clubhouse activities in an effort to
reduce suicides. He pointed out that the suicide rate in Al aska
is high, particularly in rural areas.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that this bill was heard by the
current cormmittee several weeks ago. He said he would put a "do
not pass" on the report and would object to noving it out. The
i ssue [of suicide] needs to be discussed; it is a heartbreaking

matter, he said, but he would object to a mllion-dollar [fiscal
note], which the House Finance Conmttee should have an
opportunity to [debate]. He offered that he was in a

subconm ttee hearing, and that it was very painful to cut a
mllion dollars fromthe devel opnental disability grants.

Nunber 2190

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE explained that he is painfully aware of how
suicides inpact famlies. He remarked, "Those of us who are
survivors are victinms, | think, of a different kind." He said

he has the utnost respect for the Boys & Grls Cubs and the
good they are doing in the state; he has helped with Boys &
Grls Cubs as an advisory mnenber. However, for prevention [of
suicide], Boys & Grls Clubs nust be part of other things in the
comunities. As he reviewed a map show ng cl ubhouses around the
state, he observed that not nearly enough of the state is
covered. He has grappled with this issue, he said, and supports
such prograns but questions whether this will "get us there."

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noted that this is one-tinme funding, and
said he is painfully aware of the expectation this creates; he
enphasi zed the need to have a greater effort. He expl ai ned

"We're talking about a level of training, or a |l|evel of
comm tment that cannot be a one-tine conmtnment. It has to be a
| evel of actions that are going to be so penetrating in our
comunities."” He suggested this is related to HB 408, and to
why people fail to feel good about |ife and who they are.

Number 2063
MR. OATES, in response to Chair Dyson, said he could be in
Juneau the next day, and had visited with alnost all the nenbers

or their staffs.

CHAI R DYSON renmarked that he shares the opinion that this is a
somewhat regional program This fact is coupled with the charge

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -43- March 26, 2002



of this commttee and the responsibility of finding the funding
for the program He noted that the conmittee has a decision to
make whether to pass this out. He asked what additional
information nenbers need in order to make a reasonable vote. "I
want you to feel no pressure fromne," he added.

Nunber 2013

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA replied that she would be wlling to pass
this bill out only after two anmendnents were made.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said, "I'mready now. "

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed concern. He said he had the
greatest respect for what M. QOCates and the Boys & Grls O ubs
do, but wasn't certain this was the correct vehicle for such a
massi ve problem He suggested that other groups such as
religious and Native organizations, "spirit" canps, church
groups, Boy Scouts, Grl Scouts, and others mght be interested
in being a part of looking for this solution. He suggested that
soneone from the admnistration mght have a suggestion on how
this mght be done across the state. This [effort] does not go
across the state, he said, which concerns himas well.

Number 1959

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE reported that he was part of the suicide
task force put together l|last year; he said there is no telling
what will happen with that, because he believes it was cut from
budget . He said that if [the legislature] is going to get at
the root of this problem and if the state is going to nmake the
kind of investnent in that, it has to be acconplished in a |ong-
term and "horizontal” rmanner, not a vertical manner, to be the
nost successful .

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE enphasized that he wants to see these
peopl e hel ped; he noted that [suicide] affects a |lot of young
men as well as youths. Too many people that he knows, and
unfortunately sone of his relatives, have [commtted suicide],
he said, indicating the need for the suicide task force, which
i ncl udes nenbers of the House and Senate. Referring to remarks
by Representative Stevens, Representative Joule said he'd
explained to M. QOates that one of his first thoughts was to
coordinate the suicide prevention effort with the organizations
nost famliar wth the villages they serve - the regional
nonprofits. He concluded by expressing frustration that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -44- March 26, 2002



al though he'd like to see the commttee do sonething, he wasn't
certain that [HB 338] woul d acconplish what is needed.

Nunber 1846

CHAIR DYSON informed M. QCates that he would be afforded plenty
of notice of another hearing, and suggested that he find four
commttee nmenbers and work with them until they are confortable
about passing [the bill from committee]. He added that the
committee needs to inquire of the Suicide Prevention Council.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON concurred with Representative Joule. [ HB
338 was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:37 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -45- March 26, 2002



